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Section 1036 of the Consumer Financial Protection Act of 2010 (CFPA), 12 U.S.C. § 5536, 

the Truth in Lending Act (TILA), 15 U.S.C. § 1601 et seq., the Electronic Funds Transfer Act 

(EFTA), 15 U.S.C. § 1693 et seq., the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act (GLBA), 15 U.S.C. § 6802 et 

seq., and other Federal consumer financial laws. The CIDs directed Respondents to respond 

to interrogatories, produce documents, and provide sworn verifications as to those 

responses. Respondents have not complied with the CIDs. Accordingly, the Bureau petitions 

this Court for an order compelling Respondents to comply with the CIDs. 

In support of this petition, the Bureau has separately filed the Declaration of Meredith 

B. Osborn and a memorandum of law. In further support, the Bureau alleges as follows: 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

1. This Court has subject-matter jurisdiction pursuant to Section 1052(e)(1) of the 

CFPA, which provides that if a “person fails to comply with any civil investigative demand 

duly served upon him . . . the Bureau . . . may file . . . a petition for an order of such court 

for the enforcement of this section.” 12 U.S.C. § 5562(e)(1).  

2. Venue is proper because each Respondent “transacts business” in this district. 

12 U.S.C. § 5562(e)(1); 12 C.F.R. § 1080.10(b)(1). 

THE PARTIES 

3. The Bureau is an administrative agency of the United States. 12 U.S.C. § 5491 et 

seq. The Bureau is empowered by the CFPA to enforce Federal consumer financial 

protection laws, including TILA, EFTA, and the GLBA, and to take action to prevent 

“unfair, deceptive, or abusive act[s] or practice[s] . . . in connection with any transaction with 

a consumer for a consumer financial product or service.” 12 U.S.C. §§ 5511(c)(4), 5512(a), 

5531(a), 5536(a)(1)(B), 5564(a); 12 U.S.C. §§ 5561-5567.  

4. Respondent Great Plains Lending, LLC is a limited liability company that 

offers small-dollar loans to consumers nationwide, through its website 

greatplainslending.com.  
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5. Respondent MobiLoans, LLC is a limited liability company that offers small-

dollar loans to consumers nationwide, through its website mobiloans.com.  

6. Respondent Plain Green, LLC is a limited liability company that offers small-

dollar loans to consumers nationwide, through its website plaingreen.com.  

RESPONDENTS’ FAILURE TO RESPOND  

TO THE BUREAU’S CIDS 

7. To determine whether there have been violations of Federal consumer financial 

protection laws, including laws prohibiting unfair, deceptive, or abusive acts or practices, 

Section 1052 of the CFPA empowers the Bureau to issue CIDs whenever it “has reason to 

believe that any person may be in possession, custody, or control of any documentary 

material or tangible things, or may have any information, relevant to a violation.” 12 U.S.C. 

§ 5562(c)(1). CIDs may require the recipient, inter alia, to produce documents or file answers 

to questions. 12 U.S.C. § 5562(c)(1)(A), (C).  

8. On June 12, 2012, the Bureau issued a CID to each Respondent via certified 

mail, requiring it to answer interrogatories and produce documents. 

9. The Bureau’s rules provide that the recipient of a CID may file a petition with 

the Bureau for an order modifying or setting aside a CID within 20 days after service of the 

CID. Such a petition must “set forth all factual and legal objections to the civil investigative 

demand, including all appropriate arguments, affidavits, and other supporting 

documentation.” 12 C.F.R. § 1080.6(e).  

10. Pursuant to a request by Respondents’ counsel, the Bureau granted 

Respondents a 14-day extension of the deadline for filing a petition to modify or set aside 

the CIDs. 

11. On July 17, 2012, Respondents jointly filed a timely petition to set aside the 

CIDs. In their petition, Respondents challenged the Bureau’s authority to require their 

compliance with the CIDs.  
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12. On September 26, 2013, the Bureau’s Director, Richard Cordray, issued a 

decision and order under 12 C.F.R. § 1080.6(e)(4), denying the petition to set aside the CIDs. 

The order directed Respondents to comply with the CIDs by October 17, 2013.  

13. Counsel for Respondents requested an extension of the compliance deadline, 

and the Bureau authorized an extension until October 24, 2013. 

14. Respondents have not complied with the Bureau’s CIDs. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

 WHEREFORE, the Bureau invokes the aid of this Court and prays: 

a. That this Court enter an order directing Respondents Great Plains Lending, 

LLC, MobiLoans, LLC, and Plain Green, LLC to show cause why they should 

not fully comply with the CIDs; 

b. That this Court enter an order requiring Respondents Great Plains Lending, 

LLC, MobiLoans, LLC, and Plain Green, LLC to fully comply with the CIDs 

within ten (10) days of such an order, or at such later date as may be established 

by the Bureau; and 
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